
 

 

John F. Barr, President 
Jeffrey A. Cline, Vice President 

 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
February 3, 2026 

OPEN SESSION AGENDA 

 
9:30 AM INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CALL TO ORDER, President John F. Barr 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: December 16, 2025 

9:35 AM COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

9:40 AM STAFF COMMENTS  

9:45 AM 1. ANNUAL PRESENTATION BY HAGERSTOWN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO THE WASHINGTON COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 Dr. James Klauber, President, Hagerstown Community College 
 
9:55 AM  2. WASHINGTON COUNTY FREE LIBRARY BUDGET PRESENTATION 
 Jenny Backos, Executive Director, Washington County Free Library  
 
10:05 AM 3. FY27 RURAL LEGACY PROGRAM GRANT – APPROVAL TO SUBMIT 

APPLICATION AND ACCEPT AWARDED FUNDS 
 Chris Boggs, Rural Preservation Administrator, Planning and Zoning 

 
10:10 AM 4. CONTRACT AWARD (PUR-1783) FACILITY DESIGN SERVICES 

REQUIREMENTS CONTRACT  
  Brandi Kentner, Director, Purchasing; Andrew Eshleman, Director, Public Works 

 
 5. CONTRACT AWARD (PUR-1677) ORACLE FUSION CONSULTANT FOR 

IMPLEMENTATION OF HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT RECRUITMENT 
AND ONBOARDING 
Brandi Kentner, Director, Purchasing; Chip Rose, Director, Human Resources; Angie 
Poffenberger, Deputy Director – Software Support and Training, Budget and Finance 
 
6. SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT (PUR-1796) – NICE MAINTENANCE 
SUPPORT FOR EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS 
Brandi Kentner, Director, Purchasing; Alan Matheny, Director, Emergency 
Management and Communications 

 

Derek Harvey 
Randal A. Leatherman 
Randall E. Wagner 

100 West Washington Street, Suite 1101 | Hagerstown, MD 21740-4735 | P: 240.313.2200 | F: 240.313.2201 
WWW.WASHCO-MD.NET 



 
Page 2 of 3 

OPEN Session Agenda 
February 3, 2026 

 
 
 

 
Individuals requiring special accommodations are requested to contact the Office of the County Commissioners, 240.313.2200 
Voice/TDD, to make arrangements no later than ten (10) working days prior to the meeting.   
 

10:20 AM 7. POTENTIAL FILTER REPLACEMENT CHANGE ORDER FOR SMITHSBURG 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
Joseph Moss, Deputy Director- Engineering, Water Quality 

 
 8. SERVICE PROPOSAL FOR GEA ENGINEERING 
 Joseph Moss, Deputy Director- Engineering, Water Quality 
 
10:35 AM 9. ECC TRAINING COORDINATOR 

Alan Matheny, Director, Emergency Management and Communications; Chip Rose, 
Director, Human Resources 

 
  10. ECC SIGNING BONUSES 

Alan Matheny, Director, Emergency Management and Communications; Chip Rose, 
Director, Human Resources; 
 

10:40 AM 11. WASHINGTON COUNTY RECREATION AND PARKS ADVISORY BOARD 
  Dawn Marcus, County Clerk 
 

12. REAPPOINT FRANK QUILLEN TO THE BUILDING CODE BOARD OF 
APPEALS (BCBOA) 

  Dawn Marcus, County Clerk  
 
10:45 AM 13. DEDICATION OF PROPERTY FOR THE EASTERN BOULEVARD 

WIDENING PROJECT 
  Todd Moser, Real Property Administrator, Engineering 
 
10:55 AM 14. CSXT CONSTRUCTION AND ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENTS – 

EASTERN BOULEVARD PHASE I 
Todd Moser, Real Property Administrator, Engineering; Pam Mohn, Chief of Design, 
Engineering 

 
11:00 AM 15. WASHINGTON COUNTY TRANSIT – ALLEY TEMPORARY EASEMENT 

AGREEMENT 
 Andrew Eshleman, Director, Public Works 

 
11:10 AM CLOSED SESSION – (To discuss the appointment, employment, assignment, 
promotion, discipline, demotion, compensation, removal, resignation or performance evaluation of 
appointees, employees, or officials over whom this public body has jurisdiction. Personnel matters are 
confidential. 



 
Page 3 of 3 

OPEN Session Agenda 
February 3, 2026 

 
 
 

 
Individuals requiring special accommodations are requested to contact the Office of the County Commissioners, 240.313.2200 
Voice/TDD, to make arrangements no later than ten (10) working days prior to the meeting.   
 

• Discussion of discipline of County employee. 
To consider the acquisition of real property for public purpose and matters directly related 

thereto. Open session discussion would disadvantage and weaken County bargaining position and 
disclose confidential negotiation strategy. 

• Discussion of acquisition of property for expansion of County facilities and 
operations. 

• Discussion of acquisition of property for purposes road relocation and 
improvement. 

To consider a matter than concerns the proposal for a business to expand or remain in the 
State. 

• Discussion of funding request for business to host event in Washington County 
• Discussion of grant funding for business to expand in Washington County 

To consult with counsel to obtain legal advice on a legal matter (7). Open session discussion 
would breach attorney/client privilege. 

• Status update and legal advice from County Attorney on County-Involved legal 
matter. 

• Lead advice from County attorney re: contract negotiations 
• Legal advice from County attorney on policy implementation.) 

 
1:00 PM RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Citizens’ comments regarding the items on this Agenda or any other item of County business may 
be directed to:  contactcommissioners@washco-md.net.     

 
You  may also contact each Commissioner individually at: 

John F. Barr, President:  jbarr@washco-md.net or (240) 313-2205; 
Jeffrey A. Cline, Vice President: jcline@washco-md.net or (240) 313-2208; 
Derek Harvey, Commissioner:  dharvey@washco-md.net or (240) 313-2206; 

Randal A. Leatherman, Commissioner:  raleatherman@washco-md.net or (240) 313-2209; 
Randall E. Wagner, Commissioner: rwagner@washco-md.net or (240) 313-2207. 

 
Additionally, you may contact Michelle Gordon, County Administrator at 

 mgordon@washco-md.net or (240) 313-2202.  

mailto:contactcommissioners@washco-md.net
mailto:jbarr@washco-md.net
mailto:jcline@washco-md.net
mailto:dharvey@washco-md.net
mailto:raleatherman@washco-md.net
mailto:rwagner@washco-md.net
mailto:mgordon@washco-md.net


 

Open Session Item 

SUBJECT:  Annual Presentation by Hagerstown Community College President and Board of 
Trustees to the Washington County Commissioners and Staff  
 
PRESENTATION DATE: February 03, 2026 
 
PRESENTATION BY:  Dr. James Klauber, President, Hagerstown Community College 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  None at this time 
 
REPORT-IN-BRIEF:  State of HCC and budget presentation 
 
DISCUSSION:  Dr. Klauber and the HCC Board of Trustees will brief the Commissioners and 
staff on the changes at HCC over the year, along with a budget and tuition forecast. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  3% Increase of General Fund Operating and $25,000 for Paramedic Program 
support. 
 
CONCURRENCES: None 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS: Power Point will be presented. 
 

 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  



Presentation to Washington County 
Commissioners

February 3, 2026



Goals for FY26 – Halfway Through the Year

Goal 1 - Develop HCC’s next Strategic Plan through a collaborative process that engages 
internal and external stakeholders, reflects shared priorities, and defines clear institutional 
goals for the next five years. (Standard V, S.P. Commitment 2) 

Goal 2 - Join the National Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment Partnerships (NACEP) and 
continue to refine Blueprint implementation to meet NACEP standards for application for 
accreditation in FY26. (Standard V, S.P. – Commitment 5e)      Application submitted in December

Goal 3 – Conclude the two-year process of having all online general education courses 
offered at HCC go through Master Course Certification followed by Quality Matters 
Certification. (Standard IV, S.P. – Commitment 1a)

Goal 4 - Meet year three goals in Title III grant award; FYE course, revise, orientation, QM 
goals, endowment matching goals. (Standard III, S.P. – Commitment 3e) 

Goal 5 - Plan, bid, and begin construction the Scholar and Yale Drive entrance expansion, 
re-location projects, implement new wayfinding signage, and install new information kiosks 
on campus. (Standard VE, S.P. – Commitments 1, 3, 5 and 6 ) 

2

#1 in Maryland among all institutions! 

Approval by Board in February

Exceeding all goals!

Bids secured.  Waiting on 
MDE and DGS.



Goals for FY26 – Halfway Through the Year

Goal 6 – Finish design stage, bid, and begin the renovation of the 
Advanced Technology Center. (Standard VI, S.P. – Commitment 1) 
Goal 7 - Plan for providing required space to accommodate faith-based or 

religious practices in accordance with change in Maryland law. (Standard VI, 
S.P. – Commitment 1) 
Goal 8 - Develop new career programs for in demand occupations and 

expand programs at the Bowman Family Workforce Training Center. 
(Standard III, Commitment 1)   
Goal 9 - Analyze the results from the Maryland Stadium Authority study 

completed in June 2025, and begin conversations with the HCC Board and 
Washington County leadership about its funding and implementation. 
(Standard VI, S.P. Commitment 5)    
Goal 10 - Complete the MHEC Part I and Part II submissions for the 

renovation/construction of the Administration/Student Affairs building 
(Standard VI, S. P. Commitment 1)    

3

Underway!

Need a legislative change 

Still waiting on study from MSA

Submitted to the State 

Moving Forward!



Enrollment Data

4

Students Served (Unduplicated)

Programs FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
Projected

FY2026

Credit Students 4,807 7,104 6,536 6,800

Non-Credit Students 6,590 6,275 7,071 7,150

Unduplicated Student Total 10,994 13,001 13,229 13,350



Graduation Rates Continue to Climb!

5

• Four years of increases 
in a row!

• Male graduation rate 
went up 8.1% this past 
year!



Meeting Maryland Performance 
Accountability Indicators 

6

In the past five years, we have met or exceeded all indicators aligned 
with state plan goals of access, success, and innovation.  These include:

• Credit student annual headcount
• High School student enrollment
• Enrollment in continuing education workforce development and 

contract training courses
• Annual enrollment in credit and non-credit online and hybrid 

courses
• Tuition & Fee charges compared to MD public four-years
• Outcome measures: Retention, Successful-persister rate, graduate-

transfer rate, licensure rates
• Employment: Over three-quarters of graduates of career programs 

are employed in Maryland within one year. By three years post-
graduation, career program graduates are making over $37,000 
more per year compared to their income prior to graduation.



Requests for Next Year

7

• 3% increase in operational support
• Paramedic Program support
• Continued Capital Support
• Look at future Capital support plan for ASA 

Renovation.  Submitting Parts I and II to the 
State now.



WWW.HAGERSTOWNCC.EDU

Thank you!



2027 2027 2026 2025 2024
Operating 

Budget
Operating 

Budget
Operating 

Budget Actuals Actuals

Requested Requested Approved Final Final

500135 - Pension - State 165,140 0 165,140 0 0.00% 165,140 0 0
502000 - Appropriations 10,884,680 0 10,884,680 341,300 3.24% 10,543,380 10,236,290 10,236,290
Operating Expenses 11,049,820 0 11,049,820 341,300 3.19% 10,708,520 10,236,290 10,236,290

Total 11,049,820 0 11,049,820 341,300 3.19% 10,708,520 10,236,290 10,236,290

Adjustment $ 
Change % Change

Washington County, Maryland
General Fund

Department 90040 - Hagerstown Community College
FY27 Expenses

10-6



2027 2027
Operating 

Budget
Variance 

Comments
Requested Requested

500135 - Pension - State 165,140

502000 - Appropriations 10,884,680 Requesting a three percent increase in operational support.  An additional $25,000 one-time appropriation to cover 
50% of the required match to obtain a $100,000 Mannequin ARCC grant for the paramedic program.  HCC will 
cover the other 50% of the $50,000 match.

Total 10,884,680

Washington County, Maryland
General Fund

Department 90040 - Hagerstown Community College
FY27 Expenses

10-7



Form 1

FY2027

Organization Contact Person:

Address: Telephone:

City State MD Zip Code

E-mail: Fax:

Prior Current Proposed % Prior Current Proposed %

45,248,730$   49,797,455$   51,544,569$   3.5% Form 2 10,236,290$   10,543,379$   10,859,680$   3.0%

-$       -$       -$       0% Form 2 -$       -$       25,000$           100%

-$       -$       -$       0% Form 4 -$       -$       -$       0%

-$       -$       -$       0% Form 5 -$       -$       -$       0%

-$       -$       -$       0% Form 6 -$       -$       -$       0%

-$       -$       -$       0% Form 7 -$       -$       -$       0%

45,248,730$   49,797,455$   51,544,569$   3.5% 10,236,290$   10,543,379$   10,884,680$   3.2%

X  Attach Year End Financial Statement (audited if available), if not already provided.

 Attach Form 990, the most recent year filed and completed, if applicable.

Applicant's Signature Date

Phone: 240-313-2300

Fax: 240-313-2301

General Information

The Office of Budget and Finance

100 West Washington Street, Room 3100

 Washington County, Maryland

 Outside Agency Funding Request

Hagerstown, Maryland 21740

County Funding Request

Dr. Heike Soeffker-Culicerto

(240) 500-2235

(301) 733-7852

Summary of Funding Request

11400 Robinwood Drive

Total Budget

21740Hagerstown

hisoeffker-culicerto@hagerstowncc.edu

Program  Name

Hagerstown Community College (HCC)

I understand that any and all applications submitted may be considered public documents. As such, all applications may be viewable and obtained by

the public under provisions of the Public Information Act, MD Code Ann., State Government Article 10-613.

1/15/2026

Certification Statement and Other Documents

I certify that all information in this application as well as all supplied supporting data of this application are true and complete to the best of my

knowledge and belief. I understand that material omission or false information contained in the application could constitute grounds for disqualification

from funding. I further understand that by submitting an application, I am accepting the terms and conditions as approved by the County

Commissioners of Washington County, MD for the programs specified. Expenditures are also subject to County audit.      

I also represent and warrant that the organization does not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, sex, age, color, national origin, physical or mental

disabilities for employment, or the achievement of the mission or goal of the organization.

Total

Dr. Heike Soeffker-Culicerto

General Fund Operating Budget

Match for Mannequin ARCC grant

10-8

mailto:hisoeffker-culicerto@hagerstowncc.edu
mailto:hisoeffker-culicerto@hagerstowncc.edu
mailto:hisoeffker-culicerto@hagerstowncc.edu
mailto:hisoeffker-culicerto@hagerstowncc.edu


Form 2a

10,859,680$      

39,108

Prior Year 

Actual

Current Year 

Budget

Requested Year 

Budget
(round nearest $10)

23,957,474       26,100,000       27,883,000       

4,930,996          5,650,000          5,650,000          

1,832,747          1,996,650          2,133,050          

30,721,217$     33,746,650$     35,666,050$     

- - - 

120,000             204,000             204,000             

6,423,856          7,750,285          7,750,285          

- - - 

725,075             693,492             700,000             

451,000             451,000             451,000             

1,150,000          1,450,000          1,500,000          

1. Supplies and Materials 2,211,493          2,128,898          1,905,001          

2. Contingency - General 360,764             390,858             390,000             

3. Tuition Disc/Scholarships 1,633,692          1,423,840          1,400,000          

4. PD & Memberships 465,933             454,312             465,933             

5. Advertising 335,000             340,000             340,000             

6 Other 510,990             561,790             570,000             

14,387,803$     15,848,475$     15,676,219$     

139,710 202,330 202,300 

139,710$     202,330$     202,300$     

45,248,730$     49,797,455$     51,544,569$     

General Fund Operating Budget

3.00% Increase for faculty and staff; reclasses and new 

faculty & staff positions.

Insurance

Audit 

Consultants

Phone

Based on FY26 actual.

Based on FY26 actual.

Increase due to supporting professional development.

Charge backs, service charge, uncollectable accounts, 

special events, recruitment, and other higher education 

specific expenses.

Increase due to economic forecast.

Based on prior communication with budget managers due 

to FY27 planning.

Building Maintenance

Contract Services

Note: moved to contract services

Note: moved to contract services

Rent Expense

Utilities

Total

Capital

Equipment Purchases

Vehicle Maintenance

Other (detail below):

Hardware Purchases

Other Capital Purchases

Total

Grand Total

Funding Request:

# Clients Served:

Slight increase due to adding of equipment.

Washington County, Maryland

Outside Agency Funding Request

Employer's share of social security and Medicare.

Expenditures
Budget Justification

 (Explain and justify each proposed budget line item for which an increase or 

decrease appears.)

Program Budget

Total Program Cost

Personnel Costs:

Wages

Fringe Benefits

Payroll Taxes

Organization Name:

Total 

Hagerstown Community College (HCC)

 HCC ensures equitable access to affordable, high-quality educational programs, while fostering workforce 

development and cultural vitality in the region.

Program Name:

Operating Costs:

Program Description:

10-9



Form 2b

10,859,680$      

39,108

Prior Year 

Actual

Current Year 

Budget

Requested Year 

Budget 
(round nearest $10)

10,236,290       10,543,379       10,859,680       

1. Deferred Maintenance 750,000 

2.

Match for $100,000 

mannequin for Paramedic 

Program applied for by ARCC 

grant. 25,000 

3.

15,852,133       20,009,815       20,009,815       

Contributions and bequests

Municipal - other (detail):

1.

2.

3.

26,088,423$     31,303,194$     30,894,495$     

1. Student Tuition and Fees 17,835,307       17,294,261       19,550,074       

2. Miscellaneous 200,000 200,000 200,000 

3.

4.

5.

18,035,307$     17,494,261$     19,750,074$     

1,125,000          1,000,000          900,000 

1,125,000$       1,000,000$       900,000$     

45,248,730$     49,797,455$     51,544,569$     

Hagerstown Community College (HCC)

3% increase and adjusting to FY26 numbers.

Decrease based on economic outlook.

Total

Operating Income:

Fundraising

Other:

Total

County - Gaming

General Fund Operating Budget

Assuming this will remain the same without knowing what 

the Governor's proposed FY27 budget will be.

Primarily due to the 3% requested increase in wages.

Budgeted in County Capital budget.

HCC will match $25,000 for a total match of $50,000.

Funding Request:

# Clients Served:

 HCC ensures equitable access to affordable, high-quality educational programs, while fostering workforce 

development and cultural vitality in the region.

Program Revenue

Total Program Revenue
Budget Justification 

(Explain and justify each proposed budget line item for which an increase or 

decrease appears.)

Grand Total

Other:

Sale of Equipment

Investment Income

Loan Proceeds

Total

Washington County, Maryland

Outside Agency Funding Request

Program Revenue

State

County - general operating

Organization Name:

Program Name:

Program Description:

County - Community Funding

County - other (list):

Grants:

Federal

10-10



 

 

Open Session Item 

SUBJECT: Washington County Free Library Budget Presentation 

PRESENTATION DATE:  February 3, 2026 
 
PRESENTATION BY:   Jenny L. Bakos, Library Executive Director 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: None 
 
REPORT-IN-BRIEF: The Washington County Free Library is presenting the annual state of the 
Library and Budget Request. 
 
DISCUSSION: Discussion concerning the budget and Library activities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The Library is asking for level funding from FY26. 
 
CONCURRENCES: None  

ALTERNATIVES: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 2026/2027 Library Budget  

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS:  PowerPoint Presentation 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  

































2027 2027 2026 2025 2024
Operating 

Budget
Operating 

Budget
Operating 

Budget Actuals Actuals

Requested Requested Approved Final Final

502000 - Appropriations 3,470,710 0 3,470,710 0 0.00% 3,470,710 3,470,710 3,470,710
502400 - In-Kind Expense 1,384,450 0 1,384,450 0 0.00% 1,384,450 1,384,448 1,384,448
Operating Expenses 4,855,160 0 4,855,160 0 0.00% 4,855,160 4,855,158 4,855,158

Total 4,855,160 0 4,855,160 0 0.00% 4,855,160 4,855,158 4,855,158

Adjustment $
 Change % Change

Washington County, Maryland
General Fund

Department 93400 - Free Library
FY27 Expenses

10-11



2027 2027
Operating 

Budget
Variance

 Comments
Requested Requested

502000 - Appropriations 3,470,710

502400 - In-Kind Expense 1,384,450 To record in-kind expense related to office/commercial space provided to outside agencies.
Total 4,855,160

Washington County, Maryland
General Fund

Department 93400 - Free Library
FY27 Expenses

10-12



Form 1

FY2027

Organization Contact Person:

Address: Telephone:

City State MD Zip Code

E-mail: Fax:

Prior Current Proposed % Prior Current Proposed %

7,961,070$   7,355,610$   7,416,650$   0.8% Form 2 4,855,160$   4,855,160$    4,855,160$   0.0%

-$              -$              -$              0% Form 3 -$              -$                -$              0%

-$              -$              -$              0% Form 4 -$              -$                -$              0%

-$              -$              -$              0% Form 5 -$              -$                -$              0%

-$              -$              -$              0% Form 6 -$              -$                -$              0%

-$              -$              -$              0% Form 7 -$              -$                -$              0%

7,961,070$   7,355,610$   7,416,650$   0.8% 4,855,160$   4,855,160$    4,855,160$   0.0%

   Attach Year End Financial Statement (audited if available), if not already provided.

   Attach Form 990, the most recent year filed and completed, if applicable.

Applicant's Signature Date

Library Services

I understand that any and all applications submitted may be considered public documents. As such, all applications may be viewable and obtained
by the public under provisions of the Public Information Act, MD Code Ann., State Government Article 10-613.

1/16/2026

Certification Statement and Other Documents

I certify that all information in this application as well as all supplied supporting data of this application are true and complete to the best of my
knowledge and belief. I understand that material omission or false information contained in the application could constitute grounds for
disqualification from funding. I further understand that by submitting an application, I am accepting the terms and conditions as approved by the
County Commissioners of Washington County, MD for the programs specified. Expenditures are also subject to County audit.

I also represent and warrant that the organization does not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, sex, age, color, national origin, physical or
mental disabilities for employment, or the achievement of the mission or goal of the organization.

Total

County Funding Request

Sara Baker

301-241-9377

301-739-7603

Summary of Funding Request

100 S Potomac St

Total Budget

21740Hagerstown 

sbaker@washcolibrary.org

Program  Name

Washington County Free Library

Phone: 240-313-2300
Fax: 240-313-2301

General Information

The Office of Budget and Finance
100 West Washington Street, Room 3100

     Washington County, Maryland
     Outside Agency Funding Request

Hagerstown, Maryland 21740

10-13

mailto:sbaker@washcolibrary.org
mailto:sbaker@washcolibrary.org
mailto:sbaker@washcolibrary.org
mailto:sbaker@washcolibrary.org


Form 2a

4,855,160$                    

94,771

Prior Year 
Actual

Current Year 
Budget

Requested Year 
Budget

(round nearest $10)

3,229,940          3,427,250          3,552,320          

691,990             800,850             818,680             

3,921,930$       4,228,100$       4,371,000$       

85,540               80,000               81,000               

708,150             133,500             104,000             

220,810             415,000             390,000             

3,650                 13,800               8,500                 

3,000                 19,500               

51,080               56,200               56,200               

33,780               50,000               69,500               

32,710               34,000               39,100               

50,890               46,500               51,000               

38,020               42,060               8,000                 

1,945,940          1,384,450          1,384,450          

166,500             171,100             203,500             

21,280               30,000               13,800               

1. Postage 9,730                 22,000               16,000               
2. Blue Ridge Summit 1,500                 1,500                 1,500                 
3. Contingency & Board Support 17,910               14,500               10,000               
4. Training & Dues 22,100               30,000               25,000               
5. Collection Materials 468,870             512,900             483,400             

3,878,460$       3,040,510$       2,964,450$       

160,680             87,000               81,200               

160,680$           87,000$             81,200$             

7,961,070$       7,355,610$       7,416,650$       

Library Services

2% COLA; increasing some staffing hours.

Many projects have been completed at the Fletcher 
location in the past two years.
Decreasing to balance the budget.

Now leasing equipment instead of purchasing new.Equipment Maintenance

Equipment/Lease

Insurance

Hardware/Software

Office Supplies

Phone

Above referenced lease.

Rent Expense

Utilities

County in-kind expense.

Fuel/Oil

Other equipment costs coming from the Endowment 
Restricted funds.

Decreasing to balance the budget.

Decreasing to balance the budget.

Increasing due to cost of materials (print/digital).

Increase to rate for electricity per Hagerstown Lights.

Sending out more notices via email and text messages.

Recently updated vehicles require less maintenance.

Increase in auditor cost.

Building Maintenance

Contract Services

Audit 

Program Name:

Operating Costs:

Total

Capital

Equipment Purchases

Vehicle Maintenance

Other (detail below):

Other Capital Purchases

Total

Grand Total

Program Description:

Funding Request:

# Clients Served:

Increases to the software licensing required for library 
operation.
Increases to umbrella insurance policy.

Increasing due to inflation.

Moving to a VOIP option for all phone and fax lines.

Washington County, Maryland
Outside Agency Funding Request

Increases to workers comp, retirement and social security.

Expenditures
Budget Justification

 (Explain and justify each proposed budget line item for which an increase or 
decrease appears.)

Program Budget

Total Program Cost

Personnel Costs:
Wages

Fringe Benefits

Payroll Taxes

Organization Name:

Total 

Washington County Free Library

 

10-14



Form 2b

4,855,160$                    

94771

Prior Year 
Actual

Current Year 
Budget

Requested Year 
Budget 

(round nearest $10)

4,855,160          4,855,160          4,855,160          

1.

1,671,136          1,667,340          1,668,000          

Contributions and bequests 151,153             -                      -                      

Municipal - other (detail):

1. City of Hagerstown 31,500               31,500               31,500               

6,708,949$       6,554,000$       6,554,660$       

110,598             51,000               64,750               

1. Material Fees 40,881               39,950               10,800               

2. WMPL Service Fee 19,060               19,060               19,500               

3. Capital & Endowment Transfer 327,500             421,600             466,940             

4. Passport Services 5,367                 20,000               -                      

5. Carryover Fund -                      250,000             300,000             

503,406$           801,610$           861,990$           

752,507             -                      -                      

752,507$           -$                   -$                   

7,964,862$       7,355,610$       7,416,650$       

Washington County Free Library

Taking 4% from the unrestricted funds, taking $50,000 
from the restricted equipment fund.

Passport services cancelled for non-profit libraries by State 
Department.

Increasing carryover to balance the budget.

Removing Fines from Library materials, still charging for 
the recovery of materials.

Small increase for the occupancy of WMPL in the Fletcher 
building.

Total

Operating Income:

Fundraising

Fees 

Other:

Total

County - Gaming

Funding Request:

# Clients Served:

 

Program Revenue

Total Program Revenue
Budget Justification 

(Explain and justify each proposed budget line item for which an increase or 
decrease appears.)

Washington County, Maryland
Outside Agency Funding Request

Program Revenue

Grand Total

Other:

Sale of Equipment

Investment Income

Total

Library Services

Will not have this number until later in the year.

$3,470,710 in operating funds and $1,384,450 for in-kind 
expense.

State

County - general operating

Organization Name:

Program Name:

Program Description:

County - Community Funding

County - other (list):

Grants:

Federal

10-15



Open Session Item 

SUBJECT:  FY27 Rural Legacy Program Grant – Approval to Submit Application and Accept 
Awarded Funds 

PRESENTATION DATE:  February 3, 2026

PRESENTATION BY:  Chris Boggs, Rural Preservation Administrator, Dept. of Planning & 
Zoning 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to approve the submission of the grant application for 
the fiscal year 2027 Rural Legacy Program, in the amount of $9,500,000.00 and to accept 
awarded funding. 

REPORT-IN-BRIEF:  Each year the Department of Planning & Zoning submits a funding 
request to the Maryland Department of Natural Resources for the purchase of easements in the 
County’s Rural Legacy Area. Rural Legacy properties are lands of significant agricultural, 
historic, environmental, public and cultural value inside of the designated Rural Legacy Area, 
which is concentrated around the Antietam Battlefield.  Past Rural Legacy grants have 
significantly contributed to the progress Washington County has made toward the stated goal of 
50,000 permanently preserved acres of land.  To date, the County has preserved over 9,700 acres 
of land through the Rural Legacy Program. 

DISCUSSION:  The Office of Community Grant Management has reviewed the grant application 
and funding guidelines. There are no unusual conditions or requirements attached to the acceptance 
of the grant.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  There are recurring department operating expenses for the inspections of 
the easement properties by staff. Time required for inspections are 8 hours per year or $320.00 
per year and the cost is covered by the Department of Planning and Zoning’s Land Preservation 
Budget.  

CONCURRENCES:  N/A 

ALTERNATIVES:  Deny approval for the submission of this request 

ATTACHMENTS: Rural Legacy Area Map 

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS:  N/A 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 

Agenda Report Form 





Open Session Item 

SUBJECT:  Contract Award (PUR-1783) Facility Design Services Requirements Contract 

PRESENTATION DATE:  February 3, 2026   

PRESENTATION BY:  Brandi Kentner, CPPO, Director of Purchasing and Andrew Eshleman, P.E., 
Division Director of Public Works 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to award a primary requirements contract for Facility Design 
Services to the responsive, responsible firm with the lowest price proposal amount at the specified unit 
costs and estimated hours (no minimum or maximum guaranteed) and as permitted in the Request for 
Proposals, a “stand-by list” of consultants. 

REPORT-IN-BRIEF:  The services under this contract consist of providing engineering support by 
qualified engineering consultant firms to perform engineering services for projects in the six-year 
Washington County Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and general operating budget and unanticipated 
emergencies.  The duration of the contract shall be for a period of two (2) years, with an option by the 
County to renew for up to three (3) additional one (1) year periods.  Under the terms of the contract, 
other political jurisdictions within the County may utilize the services provided as a result of this 
contract.  This is a requirements contract; therefore, services will be utilized on an as-needed basis at 
the respective hourly unit prices for each discipline with no guarantee of a maximum or minimum 
number of hours. 

Project assignments will be issued in two (2) distinct manners through this contract.  Assignments with 
a fee of no more than $50,000 will be given to the designated responsive-responsible Consultant with 
the lowest price proposal. Assignments with fees anticipated to exceed $50,000 will have a defined 
scope of work specified and distributed to the firm with the lowest cost proposal and all firms on the 
stand-by list.  All firms then will submit a proposal to complete the work defined.  The firm with the 
lowest cost proposal will then be given the assignment.   

In order to determine which proposal offered the overall lowest cost to the County for this 
recommended contract award; each proposer submitted hourly rates for various employee 
classifications or positions.  The lowest cost proposal was determined by applying the quoted rates to 
a position matrix that identified an approximate number of hours by position the County expects to 
utilize over the next twelve (12) months. 

Notice of the RFP was advertised on the County’s new online bidding web site  and on the State’s 
“eMaryland Marketplace Advantage” web site. Fifty-Four (54) persons/companies 
registered/downloaded the bid document on-line and Six (6) firms were represented at the pre-proposal 
teleconference.  Four (4) firms responded with proposals.  After evaluation of Qualifications & 
Experience submittals, two (2) firms were considered responsive, and their Price Proposals were 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 

Agenda Report Form 

Public Copy



 

opened and evaluated. Two firms were deemed non-responsive; one firm did not provide a price 
proposal, and the other did not provide key mandatory requirements of the Request for Proposal.  

DISCUSSION:  N/A   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funds are budgeted in various Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and General 
Operating Budget project accounts for the as-required services. 
 
CONCURRENCES:   Coordinating Committee  
 
ALTERNATIVES: N/A  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  N/A  

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 



Open Session Item 

SUBJECT:  Contract Award (PUR-1677) Oracle Fusion Consultant for Implementation of Human 
Capital Management Recruitment and Onboarding 

PRESENTATION DATE:  February 3, 2026  

PRESENTATION BY: Brandi J. Kentner, CPPO, Director, Purchasing Department, Chip Rose, 
Director of Human Resources,  and Angie Poffenberger, Deputy Director, Budget & Finance Software 
Support & Training  

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to award a contract under the existing Oracle Fusion 
Consultant Services contract for Implementation of Human Capital Management Recruitment and 
Onboarding to the responsive, responsible proposal with the lowest price proposal amount.  

REPORT-IN-BRIEF: The services under this contract consist of providing Washington County an 
experienced team of public sector consultants to assist functional and technical staff with planning, 
prioritization, and implementation of new or existing functionality; configuration review, assistance 
and knowledge transfer for the County’s newly added subscription for Oracle Fusion Human Capital 
Management (HCM) Recruitment module and Journeys functionality.  This functionality will add an 
Applicant Tracking System (ATS) and new automation for the Department of Human Resources 
recruiting and onboarding processes.   The duration of the contract shall tentatively be for the period to 
begin on February 4 - 17, 2026 and to be completed on or before September 1, 2026 

As part of the existing Oracle Fusion Consulting Services contract, project assignments are issued in 
two (2) distinct manners through this contract.  Assignments with a fee less than or equal to $50,000 
will be awarded to the designated responsive-responsible Consultant with the lowest price proposal: 
Metaformers, Inc.  Assignments with fees anticipated to exceed $50,000 will have a defined scope of 
work specified and distributed to those consultants deemed most qualified and offered to all consultants 
on the stand-by list.  Under the current contract the County awarded one vendor to the standby list; 
Cherry Road Technologies, Inc.  For this procurement, it was determined that cost would exceed the 
$50,000 threshold thus, requiring the scope of work to be sent to both the Primary and the standby 
vendor.  All consultants were asked to submit a proposal to complete the work defined.  The consultant 
with the lowest cost proposal will then be given the assignment.  Assignment value will be determined 
when the Consultant applies the necessary man-hours and his standard rates to the individual 
assignment.  The assignment will be given to the Consultant which requires the lowest fee.  

The Coordinating Committee was comprised of the following members: Chief Financial Officer , 
Director of Purchasing, Deputy Director Budget and Finance–Software Support & Training, Human 
Resources Director, and a Software Support Analyst. 

DISCUSSION:  N/A  

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 

Agenda Report Form 

Public Copy



 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding has been budgeted in the Capital Improvement Budget COM019 
Financial System Management & Upgrades for these services.  
 
CONCURRENCES:  As recommended by the Coordinating Committee  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  N/A  
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS:  N/A  

 

 

 



 

 

Open Session Item 

SUBJECT: Sole Source Procurement (PUR-1796) – NICE Maintenance Support for Emergency 
Communications   
  
PRESENTATION DATE: February 3, 2026 
 
PRESENTATION BY: Brandi J. Kentner, CPPO, Director of Purchasing; Alan Matheny,  
Director of Emergency Management and Communications 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Move to authorize a Sole Source procurement for Maintenance 
Support for the NICE Inform Recorder for the Emergency Communications Center in the amount 
of $213,546 over a three (3) year period from NICE Systems, Inc. of Hoboken, NJ based on its 
proposal.  
 

Total FY’26 Total FY’27 Total FY’28 
$71,182 $71,182 $71,182 

 
REPORT-IN-BRIEF: On August 30, 2022, the Board approved the procurement of the NICE 
Recording equipment in the amount of $439,002 for the Division of Emergency Services to 
upgrade the hardware, software, and for the installation. The maintenance support includes 
diagnostic, preventative, and repair services for the system. 
 
The Department of Emergency Management and Communications wishes to apply Sections 1-
106.2(a)(1) & (2) of the Code of Local Public Laws of Washington County, Maryland, to the 
procurement requested. These sections state that a sole source procurement is authorized and 
permissible when (1) Only one source exists that meets the County’s requirements and (2) The 
compatibility of equipment, accessories, or replacement parts is the paramount consideration. 
Emergency Communications Center is requesting permission to enter into a maintenance 
Agreement for the NICE recording system.  
 
Section 1-106.2 (b) (2) of the Code of Local Public Laws of Washington County, Maryland 
requires the approval of four of the five Commissioners in order to proceed with a sole source 
procurement. If approved, the following remaining steps of the process will occur as outlined by 
the law: 1) Not more than ten (10) days after the execution and approval of a contract under this 
section, the procurement agency shall publish notice of the award in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the County and 2) An appropriate record of the sole source procurement shall be 
maintained as required. 
 
DISCUSSION: N/A   
 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  



FISCAL IMPACT: Funds in the amount of $71,182 for FY26  are available in the department’s 
operating account 515180-10-11440. The department will need to budget the annual ancillary 
maintenance support cost.   
 
CONCURRENCES: N/A  
 
ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: NICE Systems’ Maintenance Quote – Maintenance Contract #129485 
 
AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS: N/A 
 

 



Customer Name: Washington County MD Date: 10/24/25
Channel: Direct Quote Expires: 7/31/26

129485 $355,910
Contact Name: Alan Matheny 11/1/26-10/31/29

Phone: 240-313-2915 
Email: amatheny@washco-md.net Susan D'Auria

Email: susan.dauria@nice.com

SERIAL NUMBERS COVERED:

Part Number Percent of List Price
Total for  Year 2026 

renewal
Total for  Year 2027 

renewal
Total for  Year 2028 

renewal

SP-CO-MAIN05-PS 20% $71,182 $71,182 $71,182

Maintenance Term Dates: HGAC-20

Maintenance Rep:

Name Remarks See Gold SLA Tab

NICE MAINTENANCE QUOTE FOR: Washington County MD

Maintenance Contract Number:

NICE LIST PRICE OF SOLUTION FOR CACULATION OF 
MAINTENANCE ONLY

NICE List Price All Product

Gold  Maintenance 
Coverage: 24x7 for remote critical, all others 8 to 5. Remote response: 2 hrs. On site 

response: 4 hrs.  Includes software hot fixes, update packs and minor version 
upgrades. Excludes major version upgrades.



 

OPEN SESSION ITEM 

SUBJECT: POTENTIAL FILTER REPLACEMENT CHANGE ORDER FOR SMITHSBURG WWTP  

PRESENTATION DATE: February 3, 2026  

PRESENTATION BY:  Joseph W. Moss, P.E. – Deputy Director of Engineering for DWQ  

RECOMMENDED MOTION: UPDATE ONLY. 

REPORT-IN-BRIEF: One of the requirements under the Scope of Work for the Smithsburg WWTP ENR 
Upgrade project was to clean and paint the interior walls of the steel vessels that contain the filter units.  When 
the filters were taken out of service and drained to allow the Contractor to begin his work, it was discovered that 
the support rollers for the rotating filter mechanisms had deteriorated to the point that the entire center discharge 
tube migrated away from the opening in the filter wall.  This created a significant gap between the wall opening 
and the discharge end of the center tube allowing effluent water to pass through the filter units without being 
filtered and thus reducing the quality of the plant effluent.   

We requested the contractor to contact the Filter Manufacturer, Aqua-Aerobic Systems, Inc., and have an 
evaluation of the filters completed to determine options for rehabbing or replacement. These filters were 
installed in the mid 1990’s and thus have been in continuous service for over 30 years.  The condition of this 
equipment has deteriorated over the years and some of the equipment and controls do not function according to 
their original intent.  Aqua-Aerobic Systems recommends replacement of the filters in their entirety to include 
controls and associated instrumentation.   

DISCUSSION: These filter units play a key role in reducing the concentration of suspended solids in the 
effluent of the treatment plant and facilitate compliance with our NPDES permit. One of the biggest challenges 
with replacing the filters here is the lack of an adequately sized access door in an exterior wall to remove the 
existing units and install new ones.  Because of this, a new wall opening and roll-up door will need to be 
designed and constructed before demolition of the existing filters can begin.  Another significant expense will 
be the installation of temporary filter(s) to provide treatment during construction.  The option to rehab these 
units through the replacement of the internal mechanical parts was investigated but is not recommended by the 
manufacturer. Major equipment like these filter units at a wastewater treatment plant typically have a useful life 
of around 30 years before things start deteriorating to the point that the equipment cannot perform its intended 
function. It is worth mentioning that modifying the filter building to allow the existing filters to be replaced at 
this time will also provide the opportunity to account for installation of a third filter for future expansion.  Lead 
time for new filters is approximately 6 months. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Consultant design fee:        $75,000.00    
New filters with stainless steel tanks:      $456,000.00 
Temporary filters during construction:      $50,000.00 
Estimated cost for building modifications and filter installation:  $150,000.00 
Estimated total cost:       $731,000.00 

CONCURRENCES:  DEM Director  

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  



 

OPEN SESSION ITEM 

SUBJECT: Service Proposal for GEA Engineering 

PRESENTATION DATE:   February 3, 2026 

PRESENTATION BY:  Joseph W. Moss, P.E. – Deputy Director of Engineering for DWQ  

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to approve the proposal from GEA Engineering. in the amounts of 
$43,141.00 and $11,465.00 for a major service and a minor service in 2026.  

REPORT-IN-BRIEF:  The Conococheague WWTP has 2 sludge dewatering centrifuges that are due for service.  
One is due for a major service while the other is due for a minor service.  These services are sole source to the 
Original Equipment Manufacturer, GEA, due to the exclusive equipment and specialized training needed to 
properly perform maintenance on this equipment.  

DISCUSSION: These 2 centrifuges are used daily to perform the critical task of reducing the water content of 
the waste sludge generated from all County operated Wastewater Treatment Plants.  Keeping them in service is a 
high priority as they reduce the amount of water we pay for in the dewatered sludge sent to the landfill.       

FISCAL IMPACT:  There are adequate funds in the operating budget account 42120 to cover these services.  

CONCURRENCES:  DEM Director  

ATTACHMENTS:  Quotations from GEA Engineering:  

Minor Service – Model CF-6000; S/N 8010-530 - $11,465.00. 

Major Service - Model CF-6000; S/N 8010-531  - $43,141.00. 

Total charges for both services:                 $54,606.00 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  























































 

 

Open Session Item 

 

SUBJECT:   ECC Training Coordinator 

PRESENTATION DATE:   February 3, 2026 

PRESENTATION BY: Alan Matheny, Director, Emergency Management and Communications 

        Chip Rose, Director, Human Resources 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approval to repurpose a vacant 911 Dispatcher role to hire a second 

training coordinator for the ECC. The current position is held by Courtney McKinley; Grade 13, Step 7 

($36.50 /hour); Job Code 590 “Emergency Communications, Quality Assurance & Training coordinator. 

 

REPORT-IN-BRIEF: Staff seeks approval repurpose a vacant 911 Dispatcher role to hire a second 

training coordinator for the ECC. The current position is held by Courtney McKinley; Grade 13, Step 7 

($36.50 /hour); Job Code 590 “Emergency Communications, Quality Assurance & Training coordinator. 

 

DISCUSSION:  Staff seeks approval to repurpose a vacant 911 Dispatcher role to hire a second training 

coordinator for the ECC. The current position is held by Courtney McKinley; Grade 13, Step 7 ($36.50 

/hour); Job Code 590 “Emergency Communications, Quality Assurance & Training coordinator. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A- The Training Coordinator’s salary will be offset by dispatcher vacancies. The 

average ECS-1 is Grade 9, Step 1 ($25.06 /hour). 

 

CONCURRENCES:   

ATTACHMENTS:   

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS: 

 

 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  



 

 

Open Session Item 

 

SUBJECT:   ECC Signing Bonuses 

PRESENTATION DATE:   February 3, 2026 

PRESENTATION BY: Alan Matheny, Director, Emergency Management and Communications 

        Chip Rose, Director, Human Resources 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approval to offer hiring bonuses for fully trained, certified Dispatchers 

for the 911 call center. 

 

REPORT-IN-BRIEF: Staff seeks approval to offer hiring bonuses for fully trained, certified 

Dispatchers for the 911 call center. 

 

DISCUSSION:  Staff seeks approval to offer hiring bonuses for fully trained, certified Dispatchers for 

the 911 call center. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $90,000. We recommend limiting these bonuses to nine (9) experienced new hires. 

We’ll monitor things like skill sets, acclimation, and turnover to determine the success of this new 

strategy. 

 

CONCURRENCES:   

ATTACHMENTS:   

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS: 

 

 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  



Open Session Item 

SUBJECT: Washington County Recreation and Parks Advisory Board 

PRESENTATION DATE: February 3, 2026 

PRESENTATION BY: Dawn L.Marcus, County Clerk  

RECOMMENDATION: Move to appoint Tom Hoffman to serve a first, full three-year term 
from February 1, 2026, through January 31, 2029, on the Washington County Recreation and Parks 
Board.  

In addition, move to reappoint Julie Sanders to serve a third, three year term from March 1, 2026, 
through February 28, 2029, and to waive the two-term limit as outlined in the Boards and 
Commissions County Policy PR-22. 

REPORT-IN-BRIEF: The Board consists of seven appointed members and two ex-officio 
members: one of seven shall be a County Commissioner ex-officio voting member.  The Board of 
Education recommends two members for appointment: one the Supervisor of Physical Education 
and Athletics and the other ex-officio, non-voting member.   

DISCUSSION: N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT: This is not a paid board. 

CONCURRENCES: Washington County Recreation and Parks Advisory Board 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 

Agenda Report Form 



30 

 

Open Session Item 

SUBJECT: Reappoint Frank Quillen to the Building Code Board of Appeals (BCBOA) 

PRESENTATION DATE: Feb 3, 2026 

PRESENTATION BY: Dawn Marcus, County Clerk 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to reappoint Frank Quillen to a second term on the BCBOA.  This 
term will be a full-three year term, from November 1, 2025 – October 31, 2028. 
 
REPORT-IN-BRIEF: The BCBOA shall be comprised of five (5) individual voting members 
appointed by the Board of County Commissioners. (the Commissioners) and the Washington County 
Building Official. The Board shall consist of members who are qualified by experience and/or 
training to pass on matters pertaining to building construction and must include a member or 
members familiar with the electrical, plumbing, mechanical, and construction trades. The individual 
voting member may not be an employee of the County. The Washington County Building Official 
will act as an ex-officio member. 
 
DISCUSSION: N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: This is not a paid board  

CONCURRENCES: Greg Cartrette Director/Code Official and the Building Code Board of 
Appeals members. 

ALTERNATIVES: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

AUDIO/VISUAL NEEDS: N/A   

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  

  







ORDINANCE NO. ORD-2026- 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE ACQUISITION OF AN EASEMENT 
INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY 

 
(Eastern Boulevard – Shaool Property) 

 
RECITALS 

 
1. The Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland (the 

“County”), believes that it is in the best interest of the citizens of Washington County to acquire 
a temporary construction easement interest in certain real property identified on the attached 
Schedule A (the “Easement Property”) to be used for public purposes.   

 
2. The County approved the purchase of the Easement Property on February 3, 2026. 
 
3. A public hearing was not required by Section 1-301, Code of the Public Local Laws 

of Washington County, Maryland, as no funds from the General Fund of the County will be 
utilized to purchase the temporary easement . 

 
4. The purchase of the Temporary Construction Easement is necessary for the 

Eastern Boulevard Project and includes the acquisition of a revertible easement.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 

County, Maryland, that the purchase of the Temporary Construction Easement be approved and 
that the President of the Board and the County Clerk be and are hereby authorized and directed 
to execute and attest, respectively, all such documents for and on behalf of the County relating to 
the purchase of the Easement Property. 
  
 ADOPTED this ___ day of February, 2026. 
 
ATTEST:     BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      OF WASHINGTON COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
____________________________  BY:        
Dawn L. Marcus, County Clerk          John F. Barr, President  
 
Approved as to legal sufficiency: 
       Mail to: 
_____________________________   Office of the County Attorney 
Zachary J. Kieffer     100 W. Washington Street, Suite 1101 
County Attorney     Hagerstown, MD 21740 



SCHEDULE A---DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT PROPERTY 
 
 Part of the lands conveyed unto Ben Shaool from Estate of George Klick, et al. by deed 
dated May 8, 2003 and recorded among the Land Records of Washington County in Liber 2020 
at folio 512, situate on the east margin of Eastern Boulevard between Klick Way and Antietam 
Drive, so far as the Grantor’s property and/or rights may be affected by the proposed road 
improvements of Eastern Boulevard and the appurtenances thereto belonging or anywise 
appertaining, in Election District 18 of Washington County, Maryland and more particularly 
described as follows:   
 
 BEGINNING for the outline hereof at a Iron Pipe Found for the end of the North 75 degree 
10 minute 58 second West 310.56 foot line as shown on an exhibit in the Grantor’s deed dated 
May 8th, 2003 and recorded among the Land Records of Washington County, Maryland at liber 
2020 in folio 512 said point also being 40.88 feet right of and perpendicular to station 57+69.17 and 
shown on aforementioned Plat No. 100-10-576, thence with the Right of Way line as depicted on 
Right of Way Plat No. 100-10-271 on bearings to agree with Maryland Grid NAD 83/1991  
 

1. North 04 degrees 12 minutes 06 seconds East 877.45 feet to a point at the 
intersection of the right of way line and the southerly line of the lands now or 
formally of Conway W. Barnes Et. al. (Liber 5407, folio 14); thence with the said 
line of division  
 

2. South 84 degrees 43 minutes 11 seconds East 9.52 feet to a point, thence departing 
said existing line of division by a new Right of Way line 

 
3. South 04 minutes 13 minutes 39 seconds West 878.99 feet to a point in the said 

southerly line of division depicted in the grantor’s deed; thence with a portion of 
the said line of division 

 
4. North 75 degrees 09 minutes 19 seconds West 9.28 feet to the point of beginning, 

containing 8,183 square feet or 0.188 acres of land, more or less. 
 
 SUBJECT to all easements, rights of way, covenants, conditions and restrictions of record 
applicable thereto. 
 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto the Board of County Commissioners of Washington 
County, Maryland, a body corporate and politic and a political subdivision of the State of 
Maryland, its successors and assigns, in fee simple, forever. 

 
TOGETHER WITH two (2) perpetual drainage easements  
 
PERPETUAL EASEMENT NO. 1 Beginning at a point being depicted at 50.00 feet right 

of and perpendicular to station 59+38.02 as “Perpetual Drainage Easement Area No. 3” on 
aforementioned right of way plat 100-10-576 thence by three (3) new lines of easement 

 
1. South 85 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds East 35.00 feet; 



2. South 04 degrees 13 minutes 39 seconds west 27.55 feet; and 
 
3. North 85 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds West 35.00 feet; to a point being 16.39 feet 

from the end of the third (3rd) line for the first part of this deed; thence with a portion 
of said line reversed  

 
4. North 04 degrees 13 minutes 39 seconds East 27.55 feet to the place of beginning, 

containing 964 square feet or 0.0221 acres, more or less. 
 
PERPETUAL EASEMENT NO. 2 Beginning at a point being 232.89 feet from the 

beginning of the third (3rd) line for the first part of this deed, said point being depicted at 50.00 
feet right of and perpendicular to station 64+13.55 as “Perpetual Drainage Easement Area No.5” 
on aforementioned right of way plat 100-10-577 thence by three (3) new lines of easement 

 
1. South 85 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds East 25.00 feet; 

 
2. South 04 degrees 13 minutes 39 seconds west 30.92 feet; and 
 
3. North 85 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds West 25.00 feet to a point in the third (3rd) line 

for the first part of this deed; thence with a portion of said line reversed,   
 
4. North 04 degrees 13 minutes 39 seconds East 30.92 feet to the place of beginning, 

containing 773 square feet or 0.0177 acres, more or less. 
 
 ALSO TOGETHER WITH three (3) revertible easements for supporting slopes containing 
an aggregate area of 20,559 square feet or 0.472 acres of land, more or less revered to as " 
REVERTIBLE ESMT. NOS 15, 16 AND 18" the outline of which is depicted on the above-mentioned 
Right of Way Plat Nos. 100-10-577 and 100-10-578. The purpose of this revertible construction 
easement shall be to provide for utility relocation, slope grading, and additional working room 
during the performance of Washington County Division of Engineering and Construction 
Management Project No. 10-243 and 10-215 Contract Nos. RD-EA-215-10 and RD-EA-243-10. 
Grantor shall not, directly or through others, erect any building or other structure (including, but 
not limited to, sheds, of any size or other improvements, including paving or blacktopping); make 
a fill or excavation of earth so as to cause a change in contour; or inundate the land with water, 
within the revertible construction easement area.  Grantor shall not erect fences over the easement 
property without the advance written consent of Grantee.  Upon final completion and final 
acceptance of said construction and installation by the Grantee, said revertible construction 
easement shall be void and shall forever cease to exist without the necessity of filing any release 
of easement in the Land Records for Washington County, Maryland. 

 
AND ALSO TOGETHER WITH three (3) temporary construction easements 

encompassing an aggregate area of 4,105 square feet or 0.0942 acres of land, more or less, referred 
to as "TEMP. ESMT. NOS 10, 11 AND 13" the outline of which is depicted on the above-mentioned 
Right of Way Plat No. 100-10-577. The purpose of this revertible construction easement shall be 
to provide for utility relocation, slope grading, and additional working room during the 
performance of Washington County Division of Engineering and Construction Management 



Project No. 10-243 and 10-215 Contract Nos. RD-EA-215-10 and RD-EA-243-10. Grantor shall not, 
directly or through others, erect any building or other structure (including, but not limited to, 
sheds, of any size or other improvements, including paving or blacktopping); make a fill or 
excavation of earth so as to cause a change in contour; or inundate the land with water, within 
the revertible construction easement area.  Grantor shall not erect fences over the easement 
property without the advance written consent of Grantee.  Upon final completion and final 
acceptance of said construction and installation by the Grantee, said revertible construction 
easement shall be void and shall forever cease to exist without the necessity of filing any release 
of easement in the Land Records for Washington County, Maryland. 
 
 The above-described parcels of land being a portion of the property conveyed from the 
Estate of George E. Klick, Et. al., by a deed dated May 8, 2003 and recorded among the Land 
Records of Washington County, Maryland, in Liber 2020, folio 512.   
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 































































































 

 

Open Session Item 

 
SUBJECT:  Washington County Transit – Alley Temporary Easement Agreement 
 
PRESENTATION DATE: February 3, 2026 
 
PRESENTATION BY: Andrew Eshleman, Director of Public Works  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION(S): Move to approve the execution of a temporary easement 
agreement with the Orchard Hills Congregation of Jehovah’s Witness, Hagerstown, Maryland.  
 
REPORT-IN-BRIEF: On May 6, 2025, the County approved execution of a Quit Claim deed 
for a 12-foot-wide alley from the City of Hagerstown that bisects the Transit Administration and 
Maintenance Facility property. A consolidation plat was also recorded to combine the County 
parcels into a single contiguous parcel to accommodate future transit facility expansion. 
 
The Orchard Hills Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses’ parking lot and parcel are currently 
served by the alley. A traffic circulation plan and entrance modifications have been proposed to 
address impacts associated with the eventual alley closure. The County does not intend to close 
the alley until such time as the transit facility expansion proceeds. A temporary easement 
agreement is proposed to define roles, responsibilities, and continued permissive use of the alley 
until access is formally closed. 
 
DISCUSSION: While the quit claim ordinance authorizing closure of the alley has been 
approved, the proposed easement agreement ensures the Congregation will retain permissive use 
of the alley until all required access improvements are completed and the alley is officially 
closed. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: None  
 
CONCURRENCES: County Attorney 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Renegotiate Agreement 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Temporary Use Agreement, Exhibit A 
 
AUDIO/VISUAL TO BE USED: N/A 
 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland 
 

Agenda Report Form  

 



1 
 

TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Easement”) made this ____ day 
of _____________________, 2026, by and between the Board of County Commissioners of 
Washington County, Maryland (“County”), party of the first part, Grantors, and The Orchard 
Hills Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses, Hagerstown, Maryland, Inc., a Maryland religious 
corporation (“Congregation”), with property located at 30 Nottingham Road, Hagerstown, 
Maryland 21740 (“Property”), party of the second part, Grantee. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 The GRANTOR has an interest in an approximately 12-foot-wide alley which runs east-
west between Devonshire Road and Nottingham Road, in the City of Hagerstown, Maryland, 
commonly known and designated as Alley 1-35; 
 
 WHEREAS, The Mayor and the City have determined to Quit Claim any interest that it 
may have in the eastern portion of said alley to the County, as evidenced by that certain Quit Claim 
Deed made on June 17, 2025 and found of record in the office of  the Clerk of the Circuit Court of 
Washington County, Maryland, at Deed Book 7720, Page 412, for the purpose of transferring 
ownership of all that hereinafter described property; 
 
 WHEREAS, in exchange for the Congregation’s consent to said Quit Claim Deed, the 
County has agreed to enter into a binding agreement with the Congregation to come to terms on 
acceptable improvements to the Property of the Congregation at its sole cost and expense 
(“Agreement”); and,  
 

WHEREAS, all parties hereto agree that the Congregation needs continued permissive use 
of the entire alley and existing access points until all terms of the Agreement are completed and 
the improvements have received final approval from pertinent authorities of the City of 
Hagerstown.   
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the recitals above being incorporated herein by reference, the 
GRANTOR, for no monetary consideration, but for other good and valuable consideration, do by 
these presents Grant and Convey a temporary easement to the GRANTEE to have continued 
access to and from the Property for the right of ingress and egress, over, upon and across the land 
of the Grantor described in the said Quit Claim Deed of June 17th, 2025, attached hereto, marked 
Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
   The above-described temporary easement is hereby conveyed subject to and together with 
any and all conditions, restrictions, limitations, easements and rights of way of record applicable 
thereto.  The Congregation shall continue to have permissive use of the entire alley described in 
Exhibit A of the Quit Claim Deed and all approximately 12-foot-wide alley from Devonshire Road 
to Nottingham Road in the City of Hagerstown, Maryland, commonly known and designated as 
Alley 1-35.  The Congregation described above shall have said permissive use until all of the terms 



2 
 

of the Agreement between the Congregation and the County are completed and the improvements 
have received final approval from the pertinent authorities of the City of Hagerstown.  The Grantor 
shall ensure that the current access from the alley remains open in both directions and usable at all 
times during construction until such time as the improvements are completed and final inspections 
by the City of Hagerstown have been completed.  After such time this temporary easement shall 
expire.   
 
 The GRANTOR specifically agrees that no buildings, obstructions, or fill of any type shall 
be placed on the property covering the temporary easement and if such conditions occur, they must 
be corrected to the satisfaction of the GRANTEE at the expense of the GRANTOR, their 
successors, heirs and assigns.   
 
 This temporary easement is for the benefit of Congregation and shall be a covenant running 
with said lands and binding upon the County, and their respective heirs, successors and assigns, 
until termination of this temporary easement.  
 

AFFIDAVIT OF TOTAL PAYMENT TO GRANTOR(S) 
 
 Pursuant to the Annotated Code of Maryland, Tax General Article Section 10-912, the 
herein Grantor hereby states under the penalties of perjury that: 
 
 (1) It is a Resident Entity of the State of Maryland; 
 
 (2)  The purchase price of the herein described property is $0.00, as recited herein;  
 
 The above property is subject to the temporary easement, subject to and together with all 
the conditions, restrictions, easements, and rights of way of record applicable thereto. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Grantor and the Grantee have caused this instrument to 
be executed by its duly authorized representative, and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly affixed 
and witnessed, and/or attested. 
  
 
 
WITNESS: BOARD OF COUNTY 
   COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON,  

COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 
 
_________________________________        By: ____________________________(SEAL) 
       John F. Barr 
       President 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

WITNESS AND ATTEST THE ORCHARD HILLS 
AS TO CORPORATE SEAL:  CONGREGATION OF JEHOVAH’S 

WITNESSES, HAGERSTOWN, 
MARYLAND, INC. 

 
 
 
_________________________________        By: ____________________________(SEAL) 
       Ortez Jones 
Secretary      Trustee 
 
             By: ____________________________(SEAL) 
       Richard Ridenour 
       Trustee 
             
                                                                               By: ____________________________(SEAL) 
       Reginald Mitchell 
 
 
 
 
 
   STATE OF MARYLAND, COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, to Wit:  
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, That on this ____ day of _________________________, 2026, 
before me, a subscriber, a Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally 
appeared John F. Barr, who acknowledged himself to be the President of the Board of County 
Commissioners of Washington County, Maryland, and that he as such Officer being authorized so 
to do, executed the foregoing Temporary Easement Agreement for the purposes therein by signing, 
in my presence, the name of the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, 
Maryland, by himself as President, and certified that this Temporary Easement Agreement is not 
part of transaction in which there is a sale, lease exchange or other transfer or all or substantially 
all of the property and assets of the City of Hagerstown, Maryland. 
 
 AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

STATE OF MARYLAND, COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, to Wit:  
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, That on this ____ day of _________________________, 2026, 
before me, a subscriber, a Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally 
appeared Ortez Jones, Richard Ridenour, and Reginald Mitchell who acknowledged themselves 
to be the Trustees of The Orchard Hills Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses, Hagerstown, 
Maryland, Inc, a Maryland religious corporation, and that they as such Trustees being authorized 
so to do, executed the foregoing Temporary Easement Agreement for the purposes therein by 
signing, in my presence, the name of The Orchard Hills Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses, 
Hagerstown, Maryland, Inc. by themselves as Trustees, and certified that this Temporary 
Easement Agreement is not part of transaction in which there is a sale, lease exchange or other 
transfer or all or substantially all of the property and assets of the City of Hagerstown, Maryland. 
 
 AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: __________________ 
 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that the above instrument was prepared by or under the 
supervision of an attorney admitted to practice of law in the State of Maryland. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
        
 
 
 
Mail to:  The Orchard Hills Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses, Hagerstown, Maryland, Inc. 
     30 Nottingham Road 
     Hagerstown, Maryland 21740 
                Attn:  Ortez Jones, Trustee 
   
















	1. ARF_HCC FY27 Budget.pdf
	HCC FY27 Presentation to County Commissioners  - Final.pdf
	Presentation to Washington County Commissioners
	Goals for FY26 – Halfway Through the Year
	Goals for FY26 – Halfway Through the Year
	Enrollment Data
	Graduation Rates Continue to Climb!
	Meeting Maryland Performance Accountability Indicators 
	Requests for Next Year
	Thank you!

	90040 HCC FY27 Agency Budget Requested Expenses Packet.pdf
	ADPEDE2.tmp
	4. Expenses by Department Repor

	ADP8755.tmp
	5. Notes for Budgets - By Reven



	2. ARF_Washington County Free Library FY27 Budget.pdf
	Library FY27 Agency Budget Requested Expenses Packet.pdf
	ADPAA2D.tmp
	5. Notes for Budgets - By Reven

	ADP2A9A.tmp
	4. Expenses by Department Repor

	ADP782.tmp
	Form 2

	ADP634C.tmp
	Form 2

	ADP919D.tmp
	Form 1 General Information


	WCFL Budget Presentation 2026.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15


	15. ARF_WCT Temporary Easement Agreement.pdf
	2024-0280 - Consolidation Plat - 2025.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout






